ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
May 3, 2005
3:28 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representative Lesil MQiire
Representati ve Sharon G ssna
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Tom Ander son
Representative Vic Kohring

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 150( HES)
"An Act relating to the Al aska children's trust grant awards."”

- MOVED CSSB 150(HES) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 288

"An Act relating to the Medicaid personal needs allowance for
assisted living hone residents; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 271

"An Act relating to limtations on overtinme for registered
nurses in health care facilities; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 150

SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA CHI LDREN S TRUST FUND GRANTS
SPONSOR(S): HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SCOCI AL SERVI CES

03/ 21/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 21/ 05 (S) HES, FIN

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- May 3, 2005



04/ 06/ 05
04/ 06/ 05
04/ 06/ 05
04/ 15/ 05
04/ 15/ 05
04/ 15/ 05
04/ 18/ 05

04/ 18/ 05
04/ 18/ 05
04/ 18/ 05
04/ 18/ 05
04/ 25/ 05

04/ 25/ 05
04/ 25/ 05
04/ 25/ 05
04/ 25/ 05
04/ 25/ 05
04/ 26/ 05
04/ 26/ 05
04/ 27/ 05
04/ 27/ 05
05/ 03/ 05

BILL: HB 288

(S)
(S)
(S)

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Held

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved CSSB 150(HES) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( HES)

HES RPT CS 3DP
NEW Tl TLE

DP: DYSON, W LKEN, GREEN

NR ELTON, OLSON

HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
<Above Bill Hearing Cancel ed>

FIN RPT CS( HES) 4DP
NEW Tl TLE

DP: W LKEN, GREEN, DYSON, STEDVAN
NR: HOFFMAN, OLSON

FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Moved CSSB 150(HES) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( FI N)

TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON:  CSSB 150( HES)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, FIN

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: MEDI CAI D PERSONAL NEEDS ALLOWANCE

SPONSOR( S)

04/ 28/ 05
04/ 28/ 05
05/ 03/ 05

BILL: HB 271

H)

(
(H
(H

HEALTH, EDUCATI ON & SOCI AL SERVI CES

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, FIN
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TITLE: LIMT OVERTI ME FOR REG STERED NURSES

SPONSOR( S)

04/ 15/ 05
04/ 15/ 05
04/ 30/ 05
04/ 30/ 05
04/ 30/ 05
05/ 02/ 05
05/ 02/ 05

05/ 02/ 05
05/ 03/ 05

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

IT ITITII33

e X

REPRESENTATI VE('S) W LSON

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
L&C, HES, FIN

L&C AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17
Moved Qut of Conmittee

M NUTE( L&C)

L&C RPT 4DP 3NR

DP: CRAWFORD, LYNN,
ANDERSON,

NR: LEDOUX, ROKEBERG KOTT
HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

- 2- May 3, 2005

GUTTENBERG



W TNESS REG STER

JASON HOOLEY, Staff

to Senator Fred Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 150 on behalf of the Senate
Heal t h, Education and Soci al Services Standing Commttee,
sponsor, which is chaired by Senator Dyson

JOEL d LBERTSON, Conmi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent
during the hearing on SB 150.

MARGO MCCABE, Chair

Al aska Children's Trust (ACT)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of ACT during the
heari ng on SB 150.

JON SHERWOOD, Medi cal Assistance Adm ni strator

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent
during the hearing on HB 288.

JANE BARNES, Nursing Director

Al aska Psychiatric Institute (API)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Cautioned that HB 271 woul d have a negative
i npact on patient care.

DI ANNE O CONNELL, Labor Program Director

Al aska Nurses Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 271

CAROL W DVAN, Regi stered Nurse

Al aska Psychiatric Institute

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 271

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- May 3, 2005



DAVE W LLI AMS, Project Coordinator

Al aska Pi oneer Hones

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 271

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON cal l ed the House Heal th, Education and Socia
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:28:52 PM
Representati ves Seaton, Gardner, and Ci ssna were present at the
call to order. Representative MQ@uiire arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

SB 150- ALASKA CHI LDREN S TRUST FUND GRANTS

CHAI R W LSON announced that the first order of business was CS
FOR SENATE BILL NO 150(HES) "An Act relating to the Al aska
children's trust grant awards."

3:30: 10 PM

JASON HOOLEY, Staff to Senator Fred Dyson, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented SB 150 on behalf of the Senate Health,
Educati on and Social Services Standing Conmittee, sponsor, which
is chaired by Senator Dyson. He said that in the late 80s, the
Alaska Children's Trust was created by the Ilegislature to
provide start-up funding to comunity-based prograns dedicated

to preventing child abuse. The amount of the grants is
prescribed in state statute. Since then, he said, "the board of
trust ees has requested sone  additional flexibility in
determ ning the anmount of grants that they award."” The proposed
| egislation would neet that request by: removi ng the $50, 000
annual cap on the grants; refining the funding formula set in
statute; including a four-year limt on the grant awards in

order to enforce the original intent to provide seed noney to
the comunity organizations; setting up a requirenment that
applicants include a self-sustainability plan in their proposal;
and giving the board of trustees the authority to reduce or
elimnate grants in order to enforce program requirenents or
performance goal s.

3:31:36 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what triggered the bill.

3:32: 06 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- May 3, 2005



JOEL G LBERTSON, Commissioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS), said the
comm ssioners of the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent and the Departnent of Health & Social Services, by
their office, were appointed to the Alaska Children's Trust when
it was initiated; however, the bulk of the nenbers are not state
enpl oyees. I n response to Representative Gardner's question, he
said what pronpted the legislation to nove forward was a strange
circunstance, which is that the trust has not done any new
grants in over two years. Because the funding doesn't go into
operations, but rather is used to start up innovative prograns,
getting them up and running, and noving on to sonething else

the original statute contenplated a step-down in funding support
over a four-year period. Sone legislators assuned that by the
fifth year, the program being funded would be on its own;
however, the statute is vague. As a result, there are prograns
t hat have continued to receive a base anount of approximately 25
percent into the eighth year.

COM SSI ONER G LBERTSON said the challenge with the Children's
Trust is that the principal of the fund has not grown
drastically and has a fairly conservative investnent strategy.

The grant meking cones solely from the interest that the fund
earns; the principal cannot be touched. Because the narket has
been fairly flat, there has been a relatively fixed anount of
noney that comes out of earnings of the fund on an annual basis;

it has ranged from between $210, 000- $240, 0000 per year. He said
there cones a point in which a 25 percent obligation to 30 to 40
grants fully wutilizes the noney and doesn't allow for new
f undi ng. The key elenment of SB 150 is to clarify what
Comm ssioner G lbertson said was the intent of the origina

| egislation, which is that after the four years of step-down
fundi ng, the amount goes to zero. He described the process as a
natural attrition every four years, which would allow new grants
to be brought onto the program

COWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON noted that the trust has received an
earmark in the |ast f eder al fiscal year for specific
progranmm ng; however, that funding doesn't go into the corpus of
the fund. He offered further details.

3:37: 02 PM
CHAIR WLSON directed attention to a booklet in the comittee

packet, entitled, "Alaska Children's Trust Annual Report 2004,"
and noted that on page 12 the grantees are |isted.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- May 3, 2005



3:37:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that the bill would also repeal the
cap on grants, and she asked how that fits in with the idea of
trying to make noney for new prograns.

COM SSI ONER G LBERTSON responded that the cap provision
probably has less direct application in the short term He said
he thinks the trustees would like to be able to "be positioned
where they could do sonething sizeable in this state,” should a
| arge anount of noney becanme avail abl e. He stated, "Wat 1've
seen is we can spend a lot of noney doing very little things,

and at the end of the day, they rarely, in their cunulative
wei ght and success, acconplish what you can get done if you do
one sizeable project and you put your noney behind it." He said

the scope of child abuse is w de and, because there is a snal
anount of noney, the mssion needs to be tightly defined and
funds need to be targeted around acconplishing "a clear change
around what the trustees define as child abuse and neglect."”
Wthout SB 150, he cautioned, there wll be no new grant naking
for the third straight year.

3:40: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CISSNA said she has been asking about "the
nmeasurenents” for the l|ast seven years she has served as a
Representative, and she has yet to see the progranms cone back
wth them She stated, "Creating the nodel is al nost as nuch of
a necessity it seens to ne as doing a lot of other things that
woul dn't have | asting effect.”

3:41: 27 PM

COWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON encouraged the commttee to involve
Margo McCabe in the discussion, because she is the chair of the
trust, while he is just a nmenber. |In response to Representative
Cissna's concern, he said he thinks the trustees will "self-
acknowl edge that there really hasn't been good perfornmance
measures in the grants.” He offered exanples. He nentioned an
i dea of nmoving fromgrants to performance contracts or neasures.

3:43: 04 PM
MARGO MCCABE, Chair, Alaska Children's Trust, said she thinks
Comm ssioner G| bertson has done a good job covering the intent

of the proposed legislation and explaining why the trust
supports it. She echoed the conm ssioner in enphasizing that

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- May 3, 2005



over the last couple of years the trust has only had enough
nmoney to fund recurring grants. She said the trust thinks there
are a lot of innovative progranms in existence worth |ooking at
and would like to have its noney freed up to do so. Regar di ng
performance neasures, she said the trust is about to issue a new
[request for proposals (RFP)] and has done good work in giving

exanpl es of performance neasures that grantees can track. She
said there is a systemin place for the trustees to neet wth
grantees to ensure they are neeting the indicators. She said
she thinks SB 150 will nove the trust closer to ensuring the
grantees are performng and will sustain the prograns once the
grant nonies are gone. She concluded, "The sustainability

requi renent just enforces what we're putting in our RFP."

M5. MCCABE, in response to a request fromthe chair, listed the
Al aska Children's Trust board nenbers. |In response to a follow
up coment from Chair WIson, she agreed that currently there
are not nmany nmenbers from snmaller comunities. 1In response to a
guestion from the chair, she noted that the trustees are
appointed to the board by the governor.

CHAIR WLSON said she would like to see nore representation on
the board fromrural Al aska.

3:46: 26 PM

M5. MCCABE concurr ed. She said nmany of the grantees are from
smaller communities around the state, so a considerable anount
of tinme is spent focusing on those comunities.

3:47:11 PM

COW SSIONER G LBERTSON said the trust conducts geographic
mappi ng of sonme of the issues around child abuse. He nentioned
a nedia canpaign that focuses on nodeling behaviors. He said
child abuse and negl ect occurs in every comunity in Al aska, but
there is great disparity geographically, which needs to be
acknow edged as resources are being put forth.

3:49:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER i nqui red about |icense plate and heirl oom
birth certificate prograns.

M5. MCCABE said those progranms, which are offered through the
Ofice of Vital Statistics, were in place before she began

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- May 3, 2005



serving on the board and have becone self-sustaining. She
deferred further comrent to the conm ssioner.

3:50: 22 PM

COWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON noted that the trust does not have an
adm nistrative budget or staff, but has done a trenendous
volunteer effort getting involved in RFPs and contracts, and
goi ng above and beyond what normal trustees would have to do.
He said the Departnent of Revenue provides support to the trust

by managing the financial accounts, investing the fund, and
providing a portion of staff time to advise the trustees on
financial issues. The Departnent of Health & Social Services
provides admnistrative support and uses resources in its
departnment for the actual admnistration of the grants. The
heirl oom certificates and license plates are two other ways to
rai se funds. He described the heirloom certificates as

"slightly nore ornate than the traditional docunment you would
get fromvital statistics.”

3:51:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed concern regarding renoving the
$50, 000 cap. He noted that the highest grants the trust has
given have been for $20,000, and it would appear that if the
trust went above $50,000, then all the efforts would be
concentrated in the npbst populated areas of the state. He
questioned if there really is a need to renove the cap or
whether the trust is just |ooking at possibly having nore noney
to grant in the future.

COWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON said he thinks it's inportant to renove
t he cap. First, it would position the trust going into the
future as the corpus of the fund grows. Al so, snmaller grants
are not as efficient. He said it shouldn't be assunmed that a
single grant cannot have statew de application; the trustees are
committed to a statewi de application of the trust. In fact, on
a per capita basis, the grants are probably heavily weighted
towards rural regions, which he opined is appropriate. He
concluded, "It's very difficult for us to manage the trust wth
sone of the constraints that are placed on it right now"

M5. MCCABE said that she supports lifting the cap in order to
position the trust board to receive larger grants in the future
which then can be distributed in the nbst appropriate way. She
said there is no intent to change the strategy in ternms of how

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- May 3, 2005



many [grants] are distributed. She stated, "We're conmitted to
continue funding prograns all around the state.”

COWM SSI ONER d LBERTSON of fered sone exanples of how the trust
uses its funds. He noted that the trust has been wunable
admnistratively to expend funds given to the it to do a nedia
canpai gn because of the existing statute.

CHAI R W LSON asked who hol ds the trust account abl e.
3:56: 52 PM

COM SSI ONER G LBERTSON replied that the trust is a public
entity appointed by the governor. Utimately, he said, the
individual ultimately responsible is the comr ssioner of DHSS.
He expl ai ned:

Procedurally, the way the trust actually works is the
trustees make the spending decisions, those spending
decisions are integrated into the grant making of the
Ofice of Children's Services and, as conm Ssioner,
I"'m the one who actually signs the authorization to
expend the funds, ... approves the RFP, and approves
t he grant awards.

CHAIR WLSON asked if [the trust] would object to reporting each
year to both the Senate Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Commttee and the House Health, Education and Soci al
Servi ces Standing Conmitt ee.

3:58:13 PM

COWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON responded that the trust publishes an
annual report that docunents where the funds go, and he said he
could certainly mke a commtnment to the chair that every
| egi sl ator gets a copy.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to [the sponsor statenent,
included in the commttee packet, which includes a chart
describing the funding fornula]. He questioned whether the way
the chart was witten may be anbi guous.

COWMWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON explained that the funding scale is
existing law. He said the grantee cones forward with a proposa

with an anount for a program set. The percentages are figured
each year from the set anount. In response to a question from
Chair WIlson, he reiterated that everyone he has spoken to has

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- May 3, 2005



said the intent was that there would be a natural turnover after
four years, but that sentence is missing in statute. O the
Si xteen grantees going into the upcom ng grant years, 12 of them
will be past four years, three of the remamining the fourth year
and one will be in its third year. There will be no grantees in
the first or second year.

4:02:59 PM

COWM SSI ONER G LBERTSON, in response to a question from Chair
Wlson as to where that |anguage exists in the bill, directed
attention to page 2, lines 7-8, which read:

(d) The board may not award grants to a single
project or programfor nore than four years.

COMM SSIONER G LBERTSON, in response to a followup question
from Chair WIlson, said there are two nore areas in the bill
with "salient pieces of new |anguage."” One part of the bil
would require the grantees to have a sustainability or self-
sufficiency plan. The other new | anguage read as foll ows:

(g) The board may reduce or discontinue a grant
awarded or distributed under this section at any tine
during the grant period if the project is not being
successf ul in acconplishing its objectives, as
determ ned by the board.

4:04:17 PM

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA reiterated her concerns regar di ng
performance nmeasures. She said the state needs to have partners
in the private sector that provide services. She offered
further exanpl es. She suggested adding | anguage to include new
organi zations with ideas for prograns.

4:06: 52 PM

COM SSIONER G LBERTSON  sai d he doesn't disagree wth
Representative C ssna. He said he has a lot programs in his
departnment that need to be addressing the issues that
Representative Cissna is tal king about. He said questions that
need to be addressed are: "How do we bring conpetition into the
mar ket pl ace for grant meking; ... how do we make our decisions
on awarding grants based on performance - on outcones that we
the payer have set; and how do we hold our grantees,
contractors, ... vendors, or our providers accountable for those

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- May 3, 2005



out comes?" He added that the Alaska Children's Trust is not the
entity to engage in that conversation, because the sole purpose
of the trust is about primary prevention and keeping it sinple.

CHAIR W LSON cl osed public testinony.

4:09:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSSB 150(HES) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB 150(HES) was
reported out of the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standi ng Comm ttee.

The commttee took an at-ease at 4:10: 45.

HB 288- MEDI CAl D PERSONAL NEEDS ALLOAMNCE

[ Not on tape, but reconstructed from the committee secretary's
| og notes, was the follow ng:]

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 288 "An Act relating to the Medicaid persona
needs allowance for assisted living honme residents; and
providing for an effective date."

4:13: 47 PM

JON SHERWOOD, Medical Assistance Administrator, Ofice of the
Conmi ssi oner, Depar t ment of Health and Soci al Ser vi ces,
testifying on behalf of the departnent, said that HB 288 hel ps
to address a change nade to regul ation. He said it would only
apply to people who are not receiving cash assistance. He

mentioned an increase to personal needs allowance, as well as a
possi bl e amendnent .

The comm ttee took an at-ease from4:16:00 to 4:17: 13.

[ The recordi ng begins again starting here.]

4:17:16 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said, "The folks that want this bil
aren't here, and so we're going to table the bill -- let's go
ahead and put the amendnent on it, and then we'll table the bill
until they see fit to be interested enough to cone and talk
about it."

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- May 3, 2005



4:17: 33 PM
REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA noved Amendnent 1, |abeled, "24G1,
5/ 2/ 2005, (8:14 A M)," which read as follows [original
punct uati on provided]:
Page 1, line 6:
Del ete "$260"
| nsert "$1, 396"
Page 1, line 13:
Del ete "$260"
| nsert "$1, 396"
[ There being no objection, it was so ordered.]
[ HB 288 was hel d over.]

HB 271-LIM T OVERTI ME FOR REG STERED NURSES

4:18: 05 PM

CHAIR WLSON announced that the final order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 271 "An Act relating to Iimtations on overtine
for registered nurses in health care facilities; and providing
for an effective date.”

4:18: 25 PM

[ CHAIR WLSON turned the gavel over to Vice-Chair Seaton.]

The commttee took an at-ease from4:18: 37 PMto 4:19: 26.

4:19:31 PM

CHAIR WLSON, as sponsor of HB 271, stated that mandatory
overtime causes significant problens, including increased injury
rates, for both patients and health care workers, and can be
life threatening. She reported that the abuse of mandatory
overtime shifts has been associated wth: unheal t hy wei ght
gain, increased use of alcohol and tobacco, and |owered |evels
of functional ability in job performance. A national study
showed that between 44,000-98,000 hospital deaths can be
attributed to nedical errors each year. The final
recomrendation of the Institute of Medicine was that all

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- May 3, 2005



overtime done by nurses - voluntary and mandatory - should be
curtail ed.

CHAIR WLSON noted that in a study entitled, "The Wrking Hours
of Hospital Staff Nurses and Patient Safety,” published in the
Jul y/ August issue of Health Affairs, found that the risk of
making an error is three tines higher when nurses work shifts
| onger than 12 hours, which she indicated is one of the main

reasons nurses are |eaving their profession. She recalled a
study a couple of years ago that said by the year 2010, 4,000
nmore nurses will be needed in Al aska. She offered anecdotes

about her experience as a nurse.

CHAIR WLSON said the proposed legislation will not prohibit a
nurse from working overtine, but it wll discourage an enpl oyer
from assigning mandatory overtine. It would also prohibit an
enpl oyer from threatening or retaliating against a nurse who
refuses overtine. Nati onwi de, she said, 10 other states have
mandated this type of legislation, while simlar |egislation has
been proposed in 20 other states.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said she supports this legislation
because it seens like a human rights issue. Not wi t hst andi ng
that, she asked what the result would be for patient care in
Al aska if the bill passes.

4:28:16 PM

CHAIR WLSON noted that <critical access hospitals would be
exenpt ed. She said hospitals in Al aska work with personnel as
much as they can to ensure that they don't wuse mandatory
[overtine] for nurses. She said the only conplaints she has
received were from state institutions: APl , the Pioneer's
Hones, and [the Departnent of Corrections]. In response to a
foll owup question from Representative Gardner, she confirned
that the bill would apply to state institutions.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said that part of this is really a quality
i ssue for patients.

4:31: 24 PM
VI CE CHAI R SEATON asked why the bill only applies to registered

nurses and further asked if the effect wll be that |esser
qualified enpl oyees are substituted for those nurses.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- May 3, 2005



CHAIR WLSON said that is a possibility; however, she said there
are guidelines regarding what |evel of practitioner nust be on
duty to supervise others.

4:33:57 PM
VICE CHAIR SEATON clarified that he wants to know if it's being

said that overtinme is dangerous for registered nurses, but not
for licensed practitioner nurses.

CHAIR WLSON said, "I'm sure that that would be also the sane
for them" She said she wouldn't have any objection to adding
LPNs.

4:34:26 PM

JANE BARNES, Nursing Director, Alaska Psychiatric Institute
(API'), told the conmttee that APl enployees 40 registered
nurses and has no LPNs. Currently there are 5 staff nurse
vacanci es, which is about the norm Sone inprovenent was nade
when the a raise was approved in 2002; at that tine there were
12 vacancies, or 25 percent of the staff nursing positions. M.
Barnes said APl does use nandatory overtine in order to neet
patient care denands. It uses nmandatory overtine only when
needed to mnimally staff the patient care wunit, and the
mandatory overtine used is mninal. She offered sonme details

She stated that the use of voluntary overtime is higher, at
about 337 hours nonthly. It is estimated that over half of the
nurses who volunteer for overtinme do so to avoid being assigned
mandat ory overti ne.

M5. BARNES said should HB 271 pass, she expects about half of
the nurses currently doing voluntary overtine to decline working

overtinme altogether. She said she anticipates that the result
woul d be maybe 200 hours of overtinme that wouldn't be net by
vol untary means. She predicted that [API] would have to use
"agency nurses" at $60/hour for 13-week peri ods. It could also
ask for the establishnent of additional positions, but given the
fact that there is already a difficulty filling the positions,

that may be of little help.

IVS. BARNES, regarding agency nurses, indicated that it's
problematic that those nurses are there for short periods of
time and sonetines don't know how to use certain equipnent or
have to learn a program unique to API's therapeutic mlieu and
work with a team A new nurse at API, she noted, partakes in

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- May 3, 2005



intensive training for four weeks, which she pointed out is a
third of an agency nurse's contract tinme.

MS. BARNES concl uded:

The total elimnation of mandated overtine, w thout

any options for a lesser bill, such as limting that
overtime to so many hours at a time, places a real
burden on us as an enployer, and | believe will have a

negati ve inpact on patient care.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if it is fair to say that the rea
problemis that [API] cannot find the staff it needs to hire or
can't retain staff.

4: 40: 44 PM

M5. BARNES answered that APl can usually find people to hire but
cannot retain them She said APl is one of the few hospitals in

town that wll hire a "full-tinme, permanent placenent, brand new
nurse, new [graduate].” Mst other hospitals require nurses to
have 6-12 nonths experience as an associate nurse. She

expl ained that the nurses APl hires often work for one year to
get that experience and then |eave to work sonepl ace el se where
t hey can earn 25-35 percent nore per hour.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER concluded that bottom line is that the
pay rate is too lowto retain qualified people.

M5. BARNES answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA surm sed that not only is the pay too | ow,
but also APl nust pay nore in constant training. She asked if
t hat has ever been cal cul at ed.

M5. BARNES offered her understanding that the conmttee received
a fiscal inpact statenent. She said she doesn't have a good
calculation regarding what it takes to train any new enpl oyee.

VICE CHAIR SEATON asked if APl is paying less for registered
nurses than conpared to hospitals in town.

M5. BARNES answered that's correct. She added that APl has al so
lost nurses to doctor's offices. In response to a followup
question from Vice Chair Seaton, she guessed that API's pay
scale is set by the |legislature.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- May 3, 2005



4:44: 03 PM

DI ANNE O CONNELL, Labor Program Director, Al aska  Nurses
Associ ation, said she has been working with "a nunber of nurses
t hroughout the state, and quite a few at APlI, actually, in
devel oping, ... supporting, and encouraging the passage of HB
271." She said there is nore than one way of attacking the
probl em at hand. She noted, "It's been primarily a state
institution problem"” She indicated that nurses from many
facilities throughout the state are concerned that their
col |l eagues are in "what they consider an untenable situation,”
but also that the problemw || spread if nothing is done now.

M5. O CONNELL, referring to Vice Chair Seaton's previous
guestion, stated her belief that the pay scale [at API] is set
by the Departnent of Admnistration and perhaps approved by the
| egi sl ature. She said currently there is a request in for a
recl assification study, which would take registered nurses, for
exanpl e, "down a notch or two" in order to make up for the 25-35

percent pay differential. She said hopefully that wll take
pl ace; however, she noted that that's a "separate project” than
mandatory overtine, although they are related. She reveal ed

that she had worked as a chaplain at API, and she said it was an
enot i onal place to work [conpared to sone health care

institutions]. She said, "And if you're there and you're faced
with this mandatory overtinme in addition to the |ower salaries,
in addition to the stress, in addition to being a brand new

nurse, you're going to | eave."

M5. O CONNELL stated that the reason the bill addresses RNs only
at present is that that's where the biggest shortage is and
that's where nost of the responsibility lies for patient care
She echoed Ms. Barnes' notation that although there may be only
40 hours of mandatory overtinme, there are 337 hours a nonth of
what is euphem stically called "voluntary overtine."

4:50: 04 PM

CAROL W DMAN, Registered Nurse, Alaska Psychiatric Institute,
testified in support of HB 271. She said every tine she goes to
work she is subject to mandatory overtine. She said she has
difficulty comng in on her days off because she has two snal
children; therefore, she is generally at the top of the l|ist of
those who have to stay [for nmandatory overtine]. She said she
gives nedications to 20-30 patients. She stated that nmandatory
overtime is very dangerous and has caused many nedication and
j udgnment errors.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- May 3, 2005



4:51:14 PM

DAVE W LLI AMS, Project Coordinator, Pioneers' Honmes, said that
RNs are crucial to pioneers' hones, but there are also LPNs and
Certified Nurse Assistants (CNAs). He said there is a lot of
overtime. Most of it is voluntary, but sone of it is mandatory.
He said the pioneers’ hones staff of RNs work overtine
voluntarily because they care greatly for the residents they

serve. He said the bill would require careful docunentation as
to whether overtinme was voluntary or nandatory, because "sone of
the provisions in the bill would penalize if it wasn't." In

response to a question from Vice Chair Seaton, he stated his
belief that every one of the RNs, LPNs, and CNAs work overtine.
He noted that the RNs are "Nurse |, Il, and IIl in the state
systent and are the people who the pioneers’ hones are required
by licensure to have on board in order to provide services. He
said he does not know what the pioneers' hones would do if
nobody showed up to work and it was necessary to call soneone up
wi thout the ability to use mandatory overti ne.

MR WLLIAMS said one alternative nay be to use contracted
services; however, he said he doesn't know how practical that
woul d be, especially in a nore renpte place. He stated that the
issue is supply; there are not enough RNs avail abl e. He opi ned
that nurses who work at the pioneers' homes carefully weigh the
benefits they receive, because "it's the package of wages and
benefits that need to be bal anced against what's in the private
sector." He proffered that if working at the pioneers' hones is
made nore valuable, then there my conme a tinme when the
hospitals would have a "hole" in their system He indicated
that he also works with hospitals and he confirnmed that they do
"l ook at contract nurses.” He reenphasized the need to have RNs
available in order to operate. He said he would get a fiscal
note to the committee to reflect how nuch overtine at the
pi oneers' hones is voluntary and how nuch i s nandatory.

4:55:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA asked if "lifting" is used to alleviate
the nursing | oad. In response to a request for clarification,
she said by "lifting" she neans shifting sonme of the

responsibilities that don't require the education of an RN to
ot her enpl oyees.

MR. WLLIAMS said the pioneers' honmes do that, which is why it
enpl oys a | ot of CNAs.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- May 3, 2005



4:57:11 PM

VI CE CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.

CHAIR WLSON noved to adopt the fiscal note from the Departnent
of Labor and Wbrkforce Devel opnent, dated 4/19/05. There being
no objection, it was so ordered.

VI CE CHAI R SEATON returned the gavel to Chair WI son.

[HB 271 was hel d over.]

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting
was adjourned at 4:57:55 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- May 3, 2005



